
  
 

 

 

MYRTLE CREEK CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

MYRTLE CREEK COUNCIL CHAMBER 

AGENDA PACKET 06/18/2024 

All city public meetings are being digitally recorded for sound and video camera surveillance. 

 The City Council of the City of Myrtle Creek will meet on Tuesday, June 18, 2024, at 5:30 PM in the 
Myrtle Creek Council Chamber, 207 NW Pleasant Street, Myrtle Creek, Oregon. 
 The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-863-3171. 
 The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and 
discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and or/meeting. 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – 5:30 PM 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City 
Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a 
subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items” section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City 
Council. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Public Presentations – Items that do not require immediate council action, such as 
presentations, discussions of potential future action items. 

4. Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items 

5. Consent Agenda – Requires a motion 
The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single 
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered 
separately upon request.  

 Consent Agenda Part 1 – Requires a motion 
 5.1 Approval of minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting for June 4, 2024 

Page 1 of 59



 Consent Agenda Part 2 – Requires a motion 
 5.2 Acknowledge receipt of Payroll & Claims Report for May 2024 

6. Department Reports 
 Items for discussion by the City Administrator and Department Heads as needed.  
 6.1     Planning/Community Development Report 
 6.2 Finance Officer Report 
 6.3 Police Department Report 
 6.4 Fire Department Report 
 6.5 Public Works Report 

7. Regular Agenda 
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 
7.1  Purchase of New Patrol Vehicle 
7.2 Contract from Knife River for Leon & Holly 
7.3 Fairway Property Sale 
7.4 Code Review Board Applications 
 

8. City Administrator Report  

9. Mayor and Councilor – Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

10. Executive Session  
The Myrtle Creek City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive Session is called 
to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable statute. All 
discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session. 
Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 
192.660 but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for 
the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are 
closed to the public. 

11. Adjournment 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 59



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 4, 2024 
Page 1 of 4 
 

      CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK  
       REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE:    June 4, 2024 

PLACE: Council Chambers, 207 NW Pleasant St., Myrtle Creek, Oregon 

PRESIDING OFFICER: Council President Robert Chaney 

COUNCILORS PRESENT: Councilors: Susan Harris, Sr., Diana Larson, Bill Burnett, Luke 
Dillon 

COUNCILORS ABSENT: Mayor Matthew Hald 

 A quorum was present throughout the meeting. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: City Administrator Lonnie Rainville, City Recorder Joanna 
Bilbrey, Finance Officer Lesley Hiscocks 

CALL TO ORDER: Council President Robert Chaney, Sr. called the June 4, 2024 
meeting to order at 5:30 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALEGIANCE 

PUBLIC PRESENTATION 
No public presentations. 
 
CITIZENS HEARD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Cathey Wragg requested clarification on who the volunteers are that are covered by worker’s 
compensation.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion was made by Councilor Dillon to approve the minutes for the Regular City Council meeting for 
May 7, 2024. Motion seconded by Councilor Harris. Discussion: no discussion followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
State Revenue Sharing 
Public Hearing for State Revenue Sharing Opened at 5:34 PM 

Page 3 of 59



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 4, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 

City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared that the City of Myrtle Creek meets the qualifications to 
receive State Revenue Sharing.  

Public Hearing closed at 5:36 PM. 

Public Hearing for the 2024-2025 Budget Opened at 5:36 PM. 

City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared a summary of the budget messaged delivered to the Budget 
Committee on April 16, 2024 along with a Power Point Presentation which is attached to the Agenda 
Packet for permanent retention. The Budget Committee approved the budget to be sent to Council as 
presented.  

The total budget for 2024-2025 is $21,581,798.00. 

Public Hearing closed at 5:41 PM. 

Regular Meeting resumed at 5:41 PM 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Resolution 24-13 A Resolution to the Oregon Department of Administrative Services Certifying 
the City’s Qualification to Receive State Revenue Sharing Funds 

Motion was made by Councilor Susan Harris to accept Resolution 24-13 A Resolution to the Oregon 
Department of Administrative Services Certifying the City’s Qualification to Receive State Revenue 
Sharing Funds. Motion was seconded by Councilor Diana Larson. Discussion: No discussion followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 24-14 A Resolution Declaring the City’s Election to Receive State Revenues 
Motion was made by Councilor Susan Harris to accept Resolution 24-14 A Resolution Declaring the 
City’s Election to Receive State Revenues. Motion was seconded by Councilor Diana Larson. 
Discussion: No discussion followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 24-15 A Resolution Adopting the 2024-25 City Budget 
Motion was made by Councilor Diana Larson to accept Resolution 24-15 A Resolution Adopting the 
2024-25 City Budget. Motion was seconded by Councilor Luke Dillon. Discussion: No discussion 
followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 24-16 A Resolution Imposing Ad Valorem Taxes and Categorizing the Tax Levy as 
Provided in ORS 310.060(2) 
Motion was made by Councilor Diana Larson to accept Resolution 24-16 A Resolution Imposing Ad 
Valorem Taxes and Categorizing the Tax Levy as Provided in ORS 310.060(2). Motion was seconded 

Page 4 of 59



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 4, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

by Councilor Susan Harris. Discussion: No discussion followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Resolution 24-17 A Resolution Making Appropriations 
Motion was made by Councilor Diana Larson to accept Resolution 24-17 A Resolution Making 
Appropriations. Motion was seconded by Councilor Susan Harris. Discussion: No discussion followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Resolution 24-18 A Resolution Extending the City of Myrtle Creek Worker’s Compensation 
Coverage to Volunteers of the City of Myrtle creek During Policy Year 2024-2025 
Motion was made by Councilor Diana Larson to pass Resolution 24-18 A Resolution Extending the City 
of Myrtle Creek Worker’s Compensation Coverage to Volunteers of the City of Myrtle Creek During 
Policy Year 2024-2025. Motion was seconded by Councilor Luke Dillon. Discussion: No discussion 
followed. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Golf Course Discussion 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared a letter that the City received from Umpqua Golf 
Management (UGM). The letter included two directions that UGM would like to go in regards to the 
golf course. Option one, was to give their 6 months’ notice to terminate their operations on May 1, 2024. 
Option two, was to continue to manage the golf course, but close from October 31st thru March 1st.  The 
City Administrator then reviewed via power point presentation the current contract between the City and 
UGM. They would provide some course maintenance during the closed winter months.  

The City Manager shared that the effluent that the City sends to the golf course during the summer is a 
vital benefit for the City. 

Council consensus is to have the City Administrator work with Umpqua Golf Management for a trial 
year basis to continue operations and allow for the winter closure. 

Airport Discussion 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared that there are federal funds available for the airport, but in 
the past there has been discussion of wanting to run out the clock on federal restrictions. Total funding 
estimates are over $1 million dollars, but accepting these funds would restart the clock on federal 
restrictions.  

Council consensus is to let the FAA requirements laps and look into private operation of the Airport.  

Elks Scholarship Donation Request 
Motion made by Councilor Harris to  donate $300 to the Elks Scholarship fund. Motion was seconded by 
Councilor Larson. Discussion: It was clarified that the donation will come from the council fund. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Page 5 of 59



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 4, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared about the Supreme Court ruling on Elected Officials and the 
use of Social Media. The decision allows for Elected Officials to have private social media and to block 
and remove posts when not tied to or acting with any state authority and not be in violation of the First 
Amendment. An audit of the sewer connections and fees was conducted and several multi unit locations 
were found to be only paying for a single sewer connection. Letters are being drafted to notify the 
property owners of the changes. The City Administrator is working with DEQ to conduct a Hazardous 
Material turn in day for the south county area. Councilor Harris asked about creating a shred day for the 
community. The City was awarded the grant for the purchase of an electric vehicle. The City 
Administrator also shared that the Family Development Center would like to relocate from Canyonville 
to Myrtle Creek. He is working with them to find a suitable location. The next Community Town Hall 
Meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, June 27th at 5:30 PM. The topic will be public safety. The 
League of Oregon Cities Small Cities meeting is Thursday, June 13th in Rogue River. 

MAYOR AND COUNCILOR – COMMITTEE REPORTS and COUNCILOR COMMENTS 
Councilor Harris shared that there have been several businesses in Myrtle Creek that have received 
counterfit money. She also shared that the next Chamber meeting will have a representative from 
Umpqua Bank share about ways to detect counterfit bills. Friday June, 7th is National Donut Day. June 
22nd is the City Wide Yard Sale. Councilor Chaney shared that the flower baskets are up and our Park 
Host is doing the watering. The Lions are still looking for another volunteer to help with the watering. 
Former Mayor Ken Brouillard passed away and there will be a celebration of life on June 21st at Millsite 
Park.   

ADJOURNMENT 
Council President Robert Chaney Sr. adjourned the regular meeting of the City Council for June 4, 2024 
at 6:58P.M. 

 

     ______________________________ 
     Matthew Hald, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 

Page 6 of 59



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK   
PAYROLL AND CLAIMS   

MAY ~~ 2024   
   
         
FUND FUND           

# DESCRIPTION BILLS P/R  TOTAL   
        

100 GENERAL FUND  217,868.96   12,953.51    230,822.47    
200 SEWER FUND    53,920.84   41,872.15      95,792.99    
210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION        720.00               -            720.00    
250 WATER FUND    21,829.31   29,458.17      51,287.48    
255 METER DEPOSITS               -                 -                   -      
260 WATER CONSTRUCTION    14,500.00               -        14,500.00    
280 AIRPORT FUND      2,251.07               -          2,251.07    
300 STREET FUND    50,514.85   10,239.57      60,754.42    
330 STORM WATER                  -      
420 SEWER EFFLUENT LOAN               -                 -                   -      
430 WWTP REPAY FUND               -                 -                   -      
450 WTP E RES DEBT FUND               -                 -                   -      
500 PARK DEVELOPMENT      3,056.00               -          3,056.00    
550 RV PARK FUND      1,716.93               -          1,716.93    
580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND               -                 -                   -      

        
 TOTAL ALL FUNDS  366,377.96   94,523.40    460,901.36    
            

 

Page 7 of 59



Page 8 of 59



Page 9 of 59



Page 10 of 59



Page 11 of 59



Page 12 of 59



Page 13 of 59



Page 14 of 59



Page 15 of 59



Page 16 of 59



Page 17 of 59



Page 18 of 59



Page 19 of 59



Page 20 of 59



Page 21 of 59



Page 22 of 59



Page 23 of 59



Community Development Department 
Monthly Report 

June  18, 2024 

 

General Planning Statistics: 
9 Planning Clearances 

 1 Covered deck 

 1 Change of venue 

 1 Solar installation 

 1 New church construction 

 1 Greenhouse 

 1 Restoration from fire 

 1 New home construction 

2 Fence 

 Significant Planning Activities: 
Tessia’s Hill Estates Subdivision 

Knife River has resumed development at the subdivision.  They are currently 
installing water and sewer lines into phase 2 of the development. Roads into 
the second cul-de-sac has been roughed in.   

Holly/Leon Paving 

We completed the bid process for the paving Holly/Leon paving project.  The 
award documents have been prepared and if contract is awarded by City 
Council at the June 18th meeting, schedules and contracts will be signed.      

Madrona 

City is working on a Small Cities Allotment Grant application to pave 
Madrona St.  Grant is due the end of July.  If the city receives the grant paving 
will occur next summer. 

 
Page 24 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE
Fund 100 GENERAL FUND
Dept 100-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 68,354.23 3,938,296.64 282,259.36 282,259.36 6.69

Dept 100-0100 FIRE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 53,600.00 3,802.03 49,482.02 4,117.98 4,117.98 7.68

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 128,910.00 13,010.72 99,299.68 29,610.32 29,610.32 22.97

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 5,500.00 0.00 5,000.00 500.00 500.00 9.09

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 45,000.00 0.00 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 233,010.00 16,812.75 153,781.70 79,228.30 79,228.30 34.00

Dept 100-0200 MUNICIPAL COURT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 63,558.00 4,038.35 49,413.01 14,144.99 14,144.99 22.26

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 87,400.00 3,344.59 55,229.80 32,170.20 32,170.20 36.81

Expense Sub Totals: 150,958.00 7,382.94 104,642.81 46,315.19 46,315.19 30.68

Dept 100-0300 LIBRARY DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 11,100.00 711.73 10,196.94 903.06 903.06 8.14

Expense Sub Totals: 11,100.00 711.73 10,196.94 903.06 903.06 8.14

Dept 100-0500 PARKS DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 164,356.00 13,086.55 131,412.66 32,943.34 32,943.34 20.04

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 61,050.00 9,595.75 48,929.15 12,120.85 12,120.85 19.85

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 230,406.00 22,682.30 180,341.81 50,064.19 50,064.19 21.73

Dept 100-0510 COMMUNITY CENTER
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 10,350.00 814.35 6,335.06 4,014.94 4,014.94 38.79

Expense Sub Totals: 10,350.00 814.35 6,335.06 4,014.94 4,014.94 38.79

Dept 100-0550 GENERAL EQUIPMENT
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 3,088.04 1,911.96 1,911.96 38.24Page 25 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE

Expense Sub Totals: 5,000.00 0.00 3,088.04 1,911.96 1,911.96 38.24

Dept 100-0600 SWIM POOL
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 66,940.00 0.00 45,844.98 21,095.02 21,095.02 31.51

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 23,500.00 1,850.89 16,805.23 6,694.77 6,694.77 28.49

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 90,440.00 1,850.89 62,650.21 27,789.79 27,789.79 30.73

Dept 100-0700 POLICE DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 953,655.00 78,559.56 815,994.40 137,660.60 137,660.60 14.44

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 160,040.00 7,581.64 127,836.16 32,203.84 32,203.84 20.12

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,113,695.00 86,141.20 943,830.56 169,864.44 169,864.44 15.25

Dept 100-0900 PUBLIC BUILDINGS
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 56,093.00 4,195.22 49,384.90 6,708.10 6,708.10 11.96

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 43,400.00 3,019.59 33,697.75 9,702.25 9,702.25 22.36

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 102,493.00 7,214.81 83,082.65 19,410.35 19,410.35 18.94

Dept 100-1000 PUBLIC WKS/SHOP
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,959.64 29,371.77 6,128.23 6,128.23 17.26

Expense Sub Totals: 35,500.00 2,959.64 29,371.77 6,128.23 6,128.23 17.26

Dept 100-1100 SUPPORT SERVICES
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 400,139.00 32,030.66 352,042.80 48,096.20 48,096.20 12.02

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 219,046.00 6,782.55 202,701.29 16,344.71 16,344.71 7.46

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 318,000.00 3,164.99 237,856.31 80,143.69 80,143.69 25.20Page 26 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 1,300,419.00 0.00 130,000.00 1,170,419.00 1,170,419.00 90.00

Expense Sub Totals: 2,237,604.00 41,978.20 922,600.40 1,315,003.60 1,315,003.60 58.77

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 68,354.23 3,938,296.64 282,259.36 282,259.36 6.69
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 4,220,556.00 188,548.81 2,499,921.95 1,720,634.05 1,720,634.05 40.77
Fund 100 Sub Totals: 0.00 120,194.58 -1,438,374.69 1,438,374.69

Fund 150 PUBLIC SAFETY FEE
Dept 150-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 6,656.60 64,274.72 13,269.28 13,269.28 17.11
Dept 150-1500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 17,252.41 17,747.59 17,747.59 50.71

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 7,544.00 0.00 741.75 6,802.25 6,802.25 90.17

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 17,994.16 59,549.84 59,549.84 76.79
Dept 150-9000
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 77,544.00 6,656.60 64,274.72 13,269.28 13,269.28 17.11
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 77,544.00 0.00 17,994.16 59,549.84 59,549.84 76.79
Fund 150 Sub Totals: 0.00 -6,656.60 -46,280.56 46,280.56

Fund 200 SEWER FUND
Dept 200-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 142,444.84 2,200,785.45 148,064.55 148,064.55 6.30

Dept 200-2000 SEWER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 194,931.00 14,770.91 171,426.31 23,504.69 23,504.69 12.06

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 224,045.00 4,509.69 65,807.06 158,237.94 158,237.94 70.63

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 863.41 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 448,976.00 20,144.01 267,233.37 181,742.63 181,742.63 40.48

Dept 200-2100 SEWER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 340,896.00 27,139.48 280,277.99 60,618.01 60,618.01 17.78Page 27 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 438,526.00 45,119.94 369,821.54 68,704.46 68,704.46 15.67

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 170,000.00 3,389.56 90,586.40 79,413.60 79,413.60 46.71

Expense Sub Totals: 949,422.00 75,648.98 740,685.93 208,736.07 208,736.07 21.99
Dept 200-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 170,000.00 780,452.00 780,452.00 82.11

Expense Sub Totals: 950,452.00 0.00 170,000.00 780,452.00 780,452.00 82.11

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 142,444.84 2,200,785.45 148,064.55 148,064.55 6.30
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,348,850.00 95,792.99 1,177,919.30 1,170,930.70 1,170,930.70 49.85
Fund 200 Sub Totals: 0.00 -46,651.85 -1,022,866.15 1,022,866.15

Fund 210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 210-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 9,130.57 1,373,542.47 567,011.53 567,011.53 29.22

Dept 210-2200 SEWER CONSTRUCTION
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 1,300,000.00 720.00 785,989.91 514,010.09 514,010.09 39.54

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 640,554.00 0.00 0.00 640,554.00 640,554.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 720.00 785,989.91 1,154,564.09 1,154,564.09 59.50

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 9,130.57 1,373,542.47 567,011.53 567,011.53 29.22
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,940,554.00 720.00 785,989.91 1,154,564.09 1,154,564.09 59.50
Fund 210 Sub Totals: 0.00 -8,410.57 -587,552.56 587,552.56

Fund 250 WATER FUND
Dept 250-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 91,216.27 1,885,869.03 95,630.97 95,630.97 4.83

Dept 250-2300 WATER MAINT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 195,241.00 16,017.27 172,596.11 22,644.89 22,644.89 11.60

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 217,938.00 7,145.78 74,364.42 143,573.58 143,573.58 65.88

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 35,000.00 0.00 11,149.87 23,850.13 23,850.13 68.14

Expense Sub Totals: 448,179.00 23,163.05 258,110.40 190,068.60 190,068.60 42.41

Dept 250-2500 WATER PLANT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 185,584.00 13,476.17 148,696.05 36,887.95 36,887.95 19.88
Page 28 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 215,149.00 14,408.50 170,106.36 45,042.64 45,042.64 20.94

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 38,000.00 0.00 23,244.74 14,755.26 14,755.26 38.83

Expense Sub Totals: 438,733.00 27,884.67 342,047.15 96,685.85 96,685.85 22.04

Dept 250-2550 SPRINGBROOK PLANT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 3,875.00 239.76 4,351.85 -476.85 -476.85 0.00

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 3,875.00 239.76 4,351.85 -476.85 -476.85 0.00

Dept 250-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 482,775.00 607,938.00 607,938.00 55.74

Expense Sub Totals: 1,090,713.00 0.00 482,775.00 607,938.00 607,938.00 55.74

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 91,216.27 1,885,869.03 95,630.97 95,630.97 4.83
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,981,500.00 51,287.48 1,087,284.40 894,215.60 894,215.60 45.13
Fund 250 Sub Totals: 0.00 -39,928.79 -798,584.63 798,584.63

Fund 255 WATER METER DEPOSITS
Dept 255-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 250.00 -300.00 300.00 300.00 0.00
Dept 255-2400
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 250.00 -300.00 300.00 300.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 255 Sub Totals: 0.00 -250.00 300.00 -300.00

Fund 260 WATER CONSTRUCTION
Dept 260-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 2,543,422.00 9,054.48 2,602,326.98 -58,904.98 -58,904.98 0.00

Dept 260-2600 WATER CONSTRUCTION
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 2,543,422.00 14,500.00 58,978.04 2,484,443.96 2,484,443.96 97.68

09 MISCELLANEOUS
Page 29 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 2,543,422.00 14,500.00 58,978.04 2,484,443.96 2,484,443.96 97.68

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 2,543,422.00 9,054.48 2,602,326.98 -58,904.98 -58,904.98 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 2,543,422.00 14,500.00 58,978.04 2,484,443.96 2,484,443.96 97.68
Fund 260 Sub Totals: 0.00 5,445.52 -2,543,348.94 2,543,348.94

Fund 280 AIRPORT FUND
Dept 280-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 1,475.44 100,053.06 11,199.94 11,199.94 10.07

Dept 280-2800 AIRPORT DEPT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 24,100.00 1,711.26 12,232.87 11,867.13 11,867.13 49.24

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 20,000.00 539.81 7,772.81 12,227.19 12,227.19 61.14

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 67,153.00 0.00 0.00 67,153.00 67,153.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 111,253.00 2,251.07 20,005.68 91,247.32 91,247.32 82.02

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 111,253.00 1,475.44 100,053.06 11,199.94 11,199.94 10.07
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 111,253.00 2,251.07 20,005.68 91,247.32 91,247.32 82.02
Fund 280 Sub Totals: 0.00 775.63 -80,047.38 80,047.38

Fund 300 STREET FUND
Dept 300-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 31,792.35 1,231,828.28 243,095.72 243,095.72 16.48

Dept 300-3000 STREET DEPT
05 PERSONNEL SERVICES

05 Sub Totals: 125,808.00 10,248.77 112,496.77 13,311.23 13,311.23 10.58

06 MATERIALS & SERVICES
06 Sub Totals: 172,612.00 24,868.72 90,106.43 82,505.57 82,505.57 47.80

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 365,000.00 25,636.93 72,322.93 292,677.07 292,677.07 80.19

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 811,504.00 0.00 0.00 811,504.00 811,504.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 60,754.42 274,926.13 1,199,997.87 1,199,997.87 81.36

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 31,792.35 1,231,828.28 243,095.72 243,095.72 16.48
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,474,924.00 60,754.42 274,926.13 1,199,997.87 1,199,997.87 81.36
Fund 300 Sub Totals: 0.00 28,962.07 -956,902.15 956,902.15

Fund 330 STORM WATER FUND
Page 30 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE
Dept 330-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 114.13 46,522.10 5,909.90 5,909.90 11.27

Dept 330-3300 STORM WATER DEPARTMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 13,750.00 0.00 810.85 12,939.15 12,939.15 94.10

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.00

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 28,682.00 0.00 0.00 28,682.00 28,682.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 810.85 51,621.15 51,621.15 98.45

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 52,432.00 114.13 46,522.10 5,909.90 5,909.90 11.27
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 52,432.00 0.00 810.85 51,621.15 51,621.15 98.45
Fund 330 Sub Totals: 0.00 -114.13 -45,711.25 45,711.25

Fund 430 WWTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 430-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-4400 WWTP CONST REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Dept 430-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund 430 Sub Totals: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fund 450 WTP CONSTRUCTION DEBT REPAY
Dept 450-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 1,065.23 573,045.69 -15,636.69 -15,636.69 0.00

Dept 450-4550 WTP CONSTRUCT REPAY
08 DEBT SERVICE

08 Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 307,775.32 -1.32 -1.32 0.00

Expense Sub Totals: 307,774.00 0.00 307,775.32 -1.32 -1.32 0.00

Dept 450-9000 MISCELLANEOUS
09 MISCELLANEOUS

09 Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00 249,635.00 100.00
Page 31 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE

Expense Sub Totals: 249,635.00 0.00 0.00 249,635.00 249,635.00 100.00

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 557,409.00 1,065.23 573,045.69 -15,636.69 -15,636.69 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 557,409.00 0.00 307,775.32 249,633.68 249,633.68 44.78
Fund 450 Sub Totals: 0.00 -1,065.23 -265,270.37 265,270.37

Fund 500 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
Dept 500-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,793.50 359,154.29 -108,646.29 -108,646.29 0.00

Dept 500-4500 PARK DEVELOPMENT
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 6,000.00 200.00 1,147.34 4,852.66 4,852.66 80.88

07 CAPITAL OUTLAY
07 Sub Totals: 10,000.00 2,856.00 6,220.57 3,779.43 3,779.43 37.79

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 234,508.00 0.00 0.00 234,508.00 234,508.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 250,508.00 3,056.00 7,367.91 243,140.09 243,140.09 97.06

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 250,508.00 1,793.50 359,154.29 -108,646.29 -108,646.29 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 250,508.00 3,056.00 7,367.91 243,140.09 243,140.09 97.06
Fund 500 Sub Totals: 0.00 1,262.50 -351,786.38 351,786.38

Fund 550 RV PARK FUND
Dept 550-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 9,939.40 129,595.79 -21,095.79 -21,095.79 0.00

Dept 550-5500
06 MATERIALS & SERVICES

06 Sub Totals: 30,000.00 1,716.93 21,497.96 8,502.04 8,502.04 28.34

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 78,500.00 0.00 0.00 78,500.00 78,500.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 108,500.00 1,716.93 21,497.96 87,002.04 87,002.04 80.19

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 108,500.00 9,939.40 129,595.79 -21,095.79 -21,095.79 0.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 108,500.00 1,716.93 21,497.96 87,002.04 87,002.04 80.19
Fund 550 Sub Totals: 0.00 -8,222.47 -108,097.83 108,097.83

Fund 580 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Dept 580-0000
R1

Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 3,043.52 996,444.03 52,463.97 52,463.97 5.00

Dept 580-5800 CAPITAL PROJECTS
07 CAPITAL OUTLAY

07 Sub Totals: 60,000.00 0.00 62,578.75 -2,578.75 -2,578.75 0.00
Page 32 of 59



General Ledger

Budget Status
User: lhiscocks
Printed: 6/4/2024 -  7:18 AM
Period: 11, 2024
ACCOUTN NUMBER DESCRIPTION BUDGET AMOUNT PERIOD AMOUNT YTD AMOUNT YTD VAR AVAILABLE % AVAILABLE

09 MISCELLANEOUS
09 Sub Totals: 988,908.00 0.00 0.00 988,908.00 988,908.00 100.00

Expense Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 62,578.75 986,329.25 986,329.25 94.03

Fund Revenue Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 3,043.52 996,444.03 52,463.97 52,463.97 5.00
Fund Expense Sub Totals: 1,048,908.00 0.00 62,578.75 986,329.25 986,329.25 94.03
Fund 580 Sub Totals: 0.00 -3,043.52 -933,865.28 933,865.28

Revenue Totals: 16,716,360.00 376,330.56 15,501,438.53 1,214,921.47 1,214,921.47 7.27
Expense Totals: 16,716,360.00 418,627.70 6,323,050.36 10,393,309.64 10,393,309.64 62.17
Report Totals: 0.00 42,297.14 -9,178,388.17 9,178,388.17

Page 33 of 59



 

                                                                                                               CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  P.O. BOX 940 / 215 NW PLEASANT ST 

MYRTLE CREEK, OR  97457 
BUSINESS:  541-863-5222 FAX:  541-863-6690 

 

          Department Report April 2024 
Training 
The police department conducted quarterly firearms training.  The training 
consisted of handgun courses and rifle courses.  Some of the handgun courses were 
scenario based, which put the officers in shoot or no shoot scenarios. The training 
was hosted by the Sutherlin Police Department. 
 
Training 

I attended the Oregon Association of Chiefs of Police conference in Pendelton.  
The training was focused on ethics and leadership.  Updates on Oregon Ballet 
Measure 110 were also discussed. 

 
New Police Officer Oath of Office 

Below is a picture of Tanner Bennett our newest police officer, taking his Oath of 
Office at his Swear-In on April 8th.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34 of 59



 

 

Online Sex Predator 

On April 11th, Detective Taggart arrested a 27-year-old male suspect from Eugene 
who drove to Myrtle Creek to meet a 15-year-old girl for sex after forming an 
online relationship.  The Eugene police department assisted with the investigation. 

 

Police Department Maintenance 

The flooring in the upstairs of the police department was recently replaced.  The 
previous carpet was coming up in several areas and was worn out.  The flooring 
was replaced with vinal planks that look like hardwood.  The project turned out 
nice and is very appreciated by the staff. 

 

Calls For Service 

During the month of April, officers from the police department responded to 213 
for service, wrote 24 traffic citations, gave 19 traffic warnings, made 25 arrests, 
and 5 city ordinance issues. 

   
 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Chief Jonathan Brewster 

Myrtle Creek Police 

 

Page 35 of 59



 

                                                                                                               CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  P.O. BOX 940 / 215 NW PLEASANT ST 

MYRTLE CREEK, OR  97457 
BUSINESS:  541-863-5222 FAX:  541-863-6690 

 

Department Report May 2024 
 
 
 
School Carnival  
The police department attended the school carnival held at Myrtle Creek 
Elementary School and interacted with parents and children and handed out 
stickers. 
 
Career Day 
The police department attended a career day for fourth and fifth grade students that 
was held at Melrose Elementary School.  Officers let children view and handle 
some of the equipment officers use, spoke about police work, and handed out 
informational pamphlets.  Below is a picture from the event. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 59



 
 
 
 
Officer Graduation 
On May 24th Officer Isaiah Smith graduated from the Department of Public Safety 
Police Academy after attending 16-weeks.  Officer Smith was also part of the 
Color Guard for his class.  Mayor Hald and I attended the graduation.  
Congratulations Officer Smith and we are glad to have you back.  Below are a 
couple pictures of the graduation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37 of 59



 
 
 
New Equipment 
The police department was able to purchase new red dot optics for the 
department’s five patrol rifles.  The old optics were not holding a zero and were no 
longer reliable to use. The new optics are working out well. 
 
 
 
Calls For Service 
During the month of May, the police department responded to 246 calls for service, 
arrested 16 individuals, wrote 29 traffic citations, gave 72 traffic warnings, and 
enforced 21 city ordinance issues.   
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Chief Jonathan Brewster 
 
Myrtle Creek Police Department 
 

 
 

Page 38 of 59



              2024 MCFD Call Responses
Call Type Ja

n
Feb

M
arc

h
April

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Aug
Se

pt
O

ct
Nov

Dec
TO

TA
L

MVA-Non Injury 3 2 1 3 9
MVA - UTL 1 1
MVA - Injury 2 2 3 1 8
MVA - Fatal 1 1
MVA - Cancelled 1 2 4 1 1 9
Medical Aid 16 10 12 6 15 59
Medical Aid - Cancelled 2 1 2 1 6
Public Assist 2 1 3
Public Assist-Lift Assist 14 7 2 1 11 35
Public Safety 2 3 3 8
Unattended Death 0
Fire/Carb Alarm 1 1 2
False Alarm Activation 2 2
Alarm Testing 0
Flue Fire 2 2
Fire - Vehicle 1 2 3
Fire 0
Fire - Illegal Burn 2 2 4 1 1 10
Fire - Controlled Burn 1 2 2 5
Fire - UTL 1 1 2 1 1 6
Fire-Nat Cover 0
Fire - Cancelled 2 1 3
Structure Fire 2 1 5 1 2 11
Structure Fire - Cancelled 5 2 1 3 11
Structure Fire -Commercial 1 1 2 4
Over Bank Rescue 0
Water Rescue 0
Water/Over Bank-Cancelled 0
Dispatched in Error/Test Page 2 2 3 1 8

        TOTAL 54 34 46 22 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 206

Page 39 of 59



Public Works and Parks  
Activities Report for June 18, 2024  

City Council Meeting  
• Streets 

o 17 Utility Locates in the month of May 
o Weekly downtown garbage collection 
o Regular street sweeping 
o Pothole repairs on Craig, Elm, Orchard and Madrona 
o Repaired street signs on Division St 

 
• Sewer 

o Weekly lift station maintenance 
o Fairway lift station wet well developed a crack that had to be repaired 
o Sewer plug at 633 Laurance 

 
• Water 

o 11 delinquent water turnoffs  
o Monthly meter reads 
o Service line repair 

 New 2-inch main line with 4 service connections to existing meters 
on Nichol Street 

 Main line leak repair on Meadowlark St 
 131 Debbie Way 
 705 Meadowlark St 

o Completed lead and copper reporting as required by DEQ 
 

• Public Works Misc. 
o Spring Cleanup first week of May 
o Hung Downtown flower baskets 
o Swept Airport for BBQ event 
o Swept high school parking lot for graduation 

 
• Parks and Public Building Department 

o Monthly park maintenance 
o Put out flower barrels in front of City Hall 
o Painted baseball field dugouts and backstop at Millsite Park 

Page 40 of 59



o Cleaned and prepared pool for season 
 
 

• Water Treatment 
o Routine labs and testing 
o South Umpqua River Plant produced 18.968 (MG) - 31 days of operation 
o Plant running at increased production for 700 to 900 GPM end of May 

 
 

• Wastewater Treatment 
o Routine labs, testing, and maintenance 
o VFD replacements.  Last part of SCADA upgrade 
o Total effluent flow to the South Umpqua River = 23.804 M.G.  
o Total Effluent flow to the M.C. Golf Course = 0 M.G.  
o Myrtle Creek influent flow = 11.115 M.G.  
o Tri-City Influent Flow = 12.738 M.G.  
o Total Effluent  = 23.804 M.G.  

 

Page 41 of 59



 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Purchase Patrol Vehicle And Replacement Of Equipment And Build For Patrol 
Vehicle 

Meeting Date:       June 18, 2024  Primary Staff Contact: Chief Brewster 
Department:          Police Department        E-Mail: jpbrewster@myrtlecre   
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council: Purchase vehicle and equipment for build of new patrol vehicle. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Purchase vehicle and equipment for instalment into new patrol vehicle by 
Wireworks in Salem. 
 

Background:  The Police Department has budgeted for a new patrol vehicle, the equipment, and the 
installation of the equipment for the new patrol vehicle that is replacing the old patrol car that is going 
offline. 

I have received a bid from Roberson Motors that is at the State bid price for a 2024 Dodge Durango 
patrol rated vehicle for $44,609.  I have received a bid from Wirework in Salem, Oregon who 
purchases and installs the equipment into our patrol cars for $18,570 to build the car with the 
equipment and remove the equipment from the patrol car that will be going offline.  I received a bid 
from Dell Computer for $2,220 for a new Dell laptop Mobile Data Computer (MDC).  I did not receive 
a bid from Day Wireless like I requested, but the going cost for a new Motorola patrol car radio is 
$7,700. 

 
Fiscal Impact:   $73,099.00 was budgeted to replace the patrol car and the cost for equipment and 
installation.   
    
Council Options: 

• Authorize the Police Department to purchase the Dodge Durango from Roberson Motors, 
purchase the MDC from Dell Computers, purchase the Motorola radio from Day Wireless, and 
have Wireworks remove the equipment from the old patrol car, and purchase and install the 
equipment inside the new patrol vehicle.   

• Take no action. 
 
Potential Motion: 

• Move to authorize the Police Department to purchase the Dodge Durango from Roberson 
Motors, purchase the MDC from Dell Computers, purchase the Motorola radio from Day 
Wireless, and have Wireworks remove the equipment from the old patrol car, and purchase and 
install the equipment inside the new patrol vehicle.   

 

Page 42 of 59



 

Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                                                                                 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Holly St/Leon Ave Improvement Contract Award 
Meeting Date: June 18, 2024  Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Public Works  E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:   Secondary Contact:   
     
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Awarding of contract for street repairs. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
It is staff’s recommendation that council approve awarding the contract for repair and paving of Leon 
and Holly Street to Knife River in the amount of 210,738 and grant City Administrator authority to 
approve change orders up to a total project cost of $300,000 for possible additional paving beyond the 
original scope. 
 
Background:   
 
City received a Small Cities Allotment Grant in the amount of $250,000 to pave Leon St and repair 
and pave Holly Street.  Bids for the project were opened on June 4th and only one bid was received 
from Knife River for the project.  The project scope was to pave Leon Ave west of Holly and to repair 
and pave Holly St. The engineer’s estimate was $271,350.  The bid from Knife River came in at 
$210,738.  The east side of Leon is also in need of repair but was left off the project due to the 
engineer’s estimate being over the grant amount.  With the bid coming in under the grant amount City 
staff would like to request a potential change order to pave more of Leon with a cost not to exceed 
$300,000, $250,000 plus $50,000 that was budgeted for street projects.    
   
Related City Policies:  
 
Procurement 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
Up to $300,000 from the Streets fund, $250,000 from the Small Cities Allotment Grant and $50,000 
budgeted for Streets Capital Improvements. 
 
Council Options: 
 
Council can approve awarding the Contract to Knife River in the amount of $210,738 and authorize 
the City Administrator to work with Knife River to put in a change order to expand the project to pave 
more of Leon, with a maximum project budget of $300,000, the original $210,738 plus up to $89,262 
for the change order. 
 

Page 43 of 59



 

Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                                                                                 

Council can approve awarding the contract to Knife River in the amount of $210,738 with no scope 
change approved. 
 
 
Council can take no action. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve awarding the paving contract for Holly and Leon to Knife River in the 
amount of $210,738 and authorize the City Administrator to work with Knife River on a change order 
to pave additional sections of Leon with a total Maximum budget of $300,000 
 

Page 44 of 59



BID TABULATION 

Holly ST & Leon AVE Improvements Bids Received: 6/4/2024 

City of Myrtle Creek The Dyer Partnership Engineers & Planners, Inc. 
Douglas County, Oregon Project No. 122.13 

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE BIDDER: Knife River Materials 

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Unit Price Total 

Holly ST & Leon AVE Improvements 

1 Construction Facilities & Temporary Controls 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $15,868.00 $15,868.00 

2 Temporary Protection & Direction of Traffic 1 LS $15,000.00 $15.000.00 $18,250.00 $18,250.00 

3 Miscellaneous Demolition & Site Preoaration 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $9,525.00 $9,525.00 

4 Cold-Plane Pavement Removal 1,170 SY $20.00 $23.400.00 $12.00 $14,040.00 

5 Reconstruction Area 1,440 SF $20.00 $28,800.00 $20.50 $29,520.00 

6 Asphalt Concrete Pavement 630 TON $185.00 $116,550.00 $154.50 $97,335.00 

7 Valve Frame Adjustment 4 EA $500.00 $2.000.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 

8 Perforated Storm Drain Line 30 LF $200.00 $6,000.00 $190.00 $5,700.00 

9 Manhole Modifications 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

10 Manhole Frame Adjustment 10 EA $2,000.00 $20,000.00 $200.00 $2,000.00 

11 Manhole Removal and Replacement 1 EA $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 

12 Stop Si�ins 2 EA $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $400.00 $800.00 

13 Road Strioino 320 LF $5.00 $1,600.00 $1.25 $400.00 

14 Thermoplastic Stop Bars 50 LF $40.00 $2,000.00 $18.00 $900.00 

TOTAL BASIC BID $271,350.00 $210,738.00 

Page 45 of 59



Page 46 of 59



 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Offer Review for Sale of Fairway Properties 
Meeting Date: June 18, 2024  Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Administration  E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:   Secondary Contact:   
     
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Review and acceptance of offer to purchase two city owned surplus parcels located on Fairway Drive. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends accepting the offer from 5J Holdings in the amount of $104,000. 
 
Background:   
 
The City has listed two lots, both addressed 0 Fairway drive having  ID#s R61915 and R148381, as 
surplus property.  The City issued a request for sealed offers to purchase the surplus property.  The 
City issued a closing date of June 6, 2024, at 5:00 pm for offer submissions.  The City received three 
offers, see attached offer matrix.  The high bid was from 5J holdings in the amount of $104,000.  The 
city needs to determine if this amount is high enough and accept the offer or reject all bids and list the 
property for sale.  
 
 
Related City Policies:  
 
Surplus property 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
Up to $104,000 revenue to the city for the sale of the property plus the annual property taxes that will 
be added due to the property being added to the tax roles. 
 
Council Options: 
 
Council can accept the offer from 5J Holdings in the amount of $104,000 
 
Council can reject all offers and list the property for sale. 
 
Council can take no action. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to accept the offer of $104,000 from 5J Holdings to purchase the surplus property 
parcel ID# R61915 and R148381 

Page 47 of 59



Bid Closing Date: 

Bids Opened:

Date Received: Bidder: Amount:
5/30/2024 11:17 Premier Home Construction Inc. $65,000

6/5/2024 1:55 PM
Larry Grammon, Rosalie Grammon, 
Stephen Gumm Sherry Howe $40,200

6/6/2024 1:29 PM 5J Holdings LLC $104,000

U:\Surplus Property\Surplus Property Sealed Bid 2024.xlsx

Sealed Bid for Surplus Real Property
Prop ID R61915 / Prop ID R148381

June 6, 2024 at 5:00 PM

June 7, 2024 at 10:30 AM

Page 48 of 59



 

Page 1 of 1                                                                                                                                                                                 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Code Review Board Applications 
Meeting Date:  June 18, 2024  Primary Staff Contact: Joanna Bilbrey 

 
 

Department: Administration  E-Mail: jbilbrey@myrtlecreek.org  
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   
Selection of the members of the Code Review Board. 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
Staff recommendation is to appoint the five applicants who submitted applications to the Code Review 
Board.  
 
Background:   
During the April 16, 2024, City Council meeting discussion was held on creating a Code Review 
Board to begin the process of reviewing the Myrtle Creek Municipal Code in order to update codes 
that may be out of date. The suggestion was to open applications for a month and from those received 
select five members to create the board. Five applications were received during this time. The five 
applications for the Code Review Board include: Robert Brooker, Jamie McElmurry, Julie Sproul, Tim 
Sproul, Elizabeth (Pitty) Weed. 
 
Related City Policies:   
 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
There is no fiscal impact. 
 
Council Options:  

• Council can appoint all applicants to the code review board as submitted. 
• Council can choose to appoint only select members to the Code Review Board 
• Council can choose to keep the selection process open.  

 
Potential Motion:   

• I make the motion to appoint the five applicants received to the Code Review Board as 
submitted.  

Page 49 of 59



Page 50 of 59



Page 51 of 59



Page 52 of 59



Page 53 of 59



Page 54 of 59



Page 55 of 59



Page 56 of 59



Page 57 of 59



Page 58 of 59



Page 59 of 59


	Binder1.pdf
	2024.06.18 City Council Agenda.pdf
	2024.06.04 City Council Minutes
	PLEDGE OF ALEGIANCE
	PUBLIC PRESENTATION No public presentations.

	Payroll & claims May 2024
	Check by date May 2024
	Budget Status May 2024
	Sheet1

	April 2024 PD Report
	May 2024 PD Report
	2024 May MCFD Response Report
	Sheet1

	Staff Report Equipment Build of Patrol Car
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Purchase Patrol Vehicle And Replacement Of Equipment And Build For Patrol Vehicle


	Holly Leon Contract award
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Holly St/Leon Ave Improvement Contract Award


	Leon Holly Bid Tabulations
	Surplus property offer review
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Offer Review for Sale of Fairway Properties


	Surplus Property Sealed Bid 2024
	Sheet1

	Staff Report Code Review Board
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Code Review Board Applications


	Robert Brooker Board Application_Redacted
	Jamie McElmurry Board Application_Redacted
	Julie Sproul Board Application_Redacted
	Tim Sproul Board Application_Redacted
	Elizabeth Weed  Board Application_Redacted

	Public Works 06-18-2024 Report.pdf
	Community Development Department June18, 2024 Report.pdf



